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Dear Commissioners 

 

 

Payment Difficulty Framework Implementation Review 

 

EnergyAustralia is one of Australia’s largest energy companies with around 2.4 million electricity and 

gas accounts in NSW, Victoria, Queensland, South Australia, and the Australian Capital Territory. 

EnergyAustralia owns, contracts, and operates a diversified energy generation portfolio that includes 

coal, gas, battery storage, demand response, solar, and wind assets. Combined, these assets 

comprise 4,500MW of generation capacity. 

EnergyAustralia appreciates the opportunity to participate in the ESC’ Payment Difficulty Framework 
(PDF) review. EnergyAustralia believe a key element of good regulatory practise is posthumous 
review to ensure that achieved intent and outcomes align with the initial objective of the regulation.  
We believe that vital and appropriate support for vulnerable customers will be achieved if the 
outcomes of this review ensure the regulation, remains fit for purpose, with a focus on improving 
engagement with customers.  
 
We appreciate the ESC’s view that the PDF has not operated for long enough to garner the required 
data to support changes at a holistic level, particularly as any substantiative data is limited by its 
interaction with the abnormality of the COVID pandemic. However, EnergyAustralia believes it 
would be remiss of the ESC to limit the scope of the review, as there are elements of the framework 
that have robust data identifying issues or discrepancies from the intent on the initial reforms. 
 
The ESC presented findings to stakeholders at an early observations workshop, which provided 
insights into the effectiveness of PDF: 

 
1. The graph below indicates increases in customers seeking support since PDF’s inception; 

however, it is unclear how much this correlates with the new framework, or if it was 
trending this way regardless. Further, it is unclear how the financial impacts of the COVID 
pandemic have increased requests for assistance, or reduced assistance required (following 
broad government support through the pandemic).  

 



 

 

 
2. The graph below indicates that the framework has contributed to the average arrears 

increasing for customers that are unable to pay their on-going usage. Customer arrears that 
can pay on-going usage have remained stable since the framework commenced, whereas 
EnergyAustralia speculates, the increase in average arrears for customers unable to meet 
their on-going usage is a result of the mandatory minimum timeframes for payment plans 
provided to this segment of customers under the framework.    
 
EnergyAustralia believes further consideration should be given to how customers unable to 
pay their on-going consumption are treated in the framework, as non-payment periods 
appear to create a situation where there is more debt, with the customer’s financial 
constraints remaining; highlighted by the proportion of >$1,000 disconnections.  

 



 

 

3. The graph below is the most unflattering for the success of the PDF, with ~ 50% of customers 
exiting their assistance due to non-compliance (either non-payment or not engaging). The 
‘1-2 customers disconnected without receiving assistance’ is a further indicator that non-
participation is an area the ESC should consider in the review, as the disconnection rates 
include a portion of customers that have not attempted any contact with their retailers since 
commencing consumption of energy at their premise (predominantly, unknown consumers). 
 

 
 
EnergyAustralia believe the data provided by the ESC is robust enough to support extending the 
review to include: 
 

• Assessment of how the framework should consider varying degrees of debt, with analysis 
conducted into the successful completion of assistance where a customer has entered with a 
low debt balance compared to high. 
 

• Comparison for how other industries support vulnerable customers, with a particular focus on 
how they manage the debt of customers who are unable to meet on-going consumption, are not 
engaging, and how these industries then manage any bad debts. 
 

• Consideration for the most effective and cost-efficient way for addressing the underlying causes 
of systemic debt, e.g., is it appropriate for energy retailers to own debt risk if they are unable to 
resolve the underlying causes traversing all elements of customers’ lives. 
 
 

We have responded below to the retailer specific questions raised by the ESC: 
 



 

 

1. How are the entitlements under the framework communicated to customers (from a single 
retailer, and across the sector)? From your experience, are the ways they are communicated 
clear and consistent?  

 
EnergyAustralia communicates the entitlements information to customers when they have a 
debt >$55 and they: 

a) engage via phone, self-service options, or the web page chat;  

b) Receive a reminder notice; or, 

c) Receive a Tailored Assistance information letter; 

i. sent to a customer in-lieu of a reminder notice at 21-days; 

ii. if a customer does not have time to discuss tailored assistance during a call; or 

iii. following a failed best endeavour contact attempt during the collections process. 

We believe the information provided to customers on their entitlements is clear and consistent 
with the intent of the PDF reforms; however, the expectations for customer engagement and 
participation are lacking.   
 
To reduce the instances of customer debt increasing following their participation in the PDF 
support, EnergyAustralia believes that communication to customers on their entitlements 
should expressly describe customers’ requirements for participation and engagement.  
 
As an example, if a customer’s debt repayment is put on hold and they are paying less than the 
full cost of their on-going energy use, and the customers consumption then exceeds their 
historical average, they must engage with their retailer, to either: 

• Request assistance to address the increased consumption; or, 

• To opt-out of the current payment plan arrangements (debt hold or payment less than 
their energy use). 

 

EnergyAustralia believes this is a reasonable safeguard to manage the risk of customer’s debt 
increasing while they are receiving assistance under the PDF.   
 

2. How much do you think customers are aware of, or understand, their entitlements?  
 
Customer feedback, received by EnergyAustralia’s hardship team (EnergyAssist), indicates varied 
levels of comprehension between customers, with most aware that help is available, but without 
an understanding of the specifics or how it will directly impact their situation; for the customers 
that make contact, we explain the framework in detail to clarify any confusion. 

It is unclear if the customers not making contact, are clear on their entitlements, or are just not 
engaging. EnergyAustralia believes that when and how information is provided to customers is 
crucial, and suggests the ESC consider conducting behavioural testing to identify the optimum 
format for providing entitlement information to customers. 
 

3. How helpful and practical has the payment difficulty assistance provided to customers been?  
 
EnergyAustralia’s data (outlined in the tables below) indicate an improved adherence rate than 
the industry average provided by the ESC (graph 3 above), and our success rate for plans kept at 
~70% is a significant improvement on pre-PDF, where we were achieving ~58% success. 







 

 

9. Are there areas of the framework that you found confusing or unclear?  
 
The ESC has indicated that industry has not appropriately implemented the framework, while 
EnergyAustralia is confident in our interpretation and implementation of the framework, to 
address the ESC’s concern, industry-wide improvements could be achieved by reducing 
ambiguity in the interpretation of the PDF.  
 
This can be achieved by developing clear guidelines, such as, how the framework interacts at a 
customer journey level, and the specific process required for a disconnection for non-payment. 

 
10. Are there other strategies or approaches retailers have considered (within or outside the 

framework) that can better help customers and achieve the framework’s objectives? If so, what 
are these strategies or approaches?  

In the interest of protecting customers impacted during the COVID pandemic, retailers and 
customer advocates produces a best practice guideline for vulnerable customer support1, this 
collaboration was not conducted as token gesture, it is another example of retailers’ continual 
consideration of how to ensure that vulnerable customers are offered the best protection 
available.  
 
Prescription can be useful to ensure conformity between retailers; however, not relying on 
regulation, can provide retailers the flexibility for innovation in how they support vulnerable 
customers. Therefore, to protect retailer innovation, regulation should be limited unless; the 
need is supported by evidence (data identifying the issue), and/or if the issue cannot be more 
effectively addressed directly with the perpetrating retailer/s. 
 
Additional actions EnergyAustralia are undertaking: 
 

• We are currently developing data analytics to predict financial difficulty of customers based 
on their behaviours (payment adequacy and frequency, payment method, etc) to challenge 
the collection process and proactively contact to offer support through our EnergyAssist 
team. 

• Added an additional Tailored Assistance information letter pre disconnection assessment to 
try and engage the customer to call us. 

• On completion of a customer’s current payment plan, proactively offer a new 12-month plan 
if their remaining debt is >$55 outstanding. This is an opt-in option, and it encourages the 
customer to contact us if they need additional support. 

• We attempt to contact the customer to discuss a new payment plan following completion of 
a debt hold or other form of EnergyAssist hardship payment plan. If unsuccessful in making 
direct contact, we propose a plan to the customer at their existing instalment amount and 
frequency. This is an opt-in option which the customer must accept. 
 

11. Are there other problems faced by energy customers that may not be covered by the payment 
difficulty framework? 
 
Customers can be experiencing a plethora of problems that have, or are, causing vulnerability, 
with retailers only capable of assisting with the energy component of these problems. 

 
1 https://www.energycouncil.com.au/best-practice-resources/  



 

 

EnergyAustralia does not believe there are any problems specific to energy that are not covered 
by the existing framework.  
 
As discussed above, EnergyAustralia believes it is vital the ESC consider if it is appropriate for 
energy retailers to own the debt risk where they are unable to resolve the underlying causes 
traversing all elements of customers’ lives. We would appreciate if the ESC can consider the 
most equitable way for customer bad debts to be recovered. 
 
We believe it is unreasonable to assess the efficacy of energy retailer’s vulnerability assistance 
without a fair comparison against how other essential industries provide this service; as an 
example, the water industry is commonly viewed as the gold standard in vulnerable customer 
support, and it would be remiss to not consider that this is achievable because unrecoverable 
debt can be forecast and included in water bodies pricing models. 
 

If you would like to discuss this submission, please contact me on  or 

. 

 

Regards 

Travis Worsteling 

Regulatory Affairs Lead 




